
CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
RESOLUTION NO. #2015-5 

 
A Resolution to Accept Certain 

Street and Right of Way for Public Use 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of North Sioux City has determined that it would be in the public interest 
for the City to accept the street and right of way identified below for public use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, River Valley, L.L.P. have agreed to deed to the City of North Sioux City for the 
following described real estate for public use and maintenance: 
 

All that part of Tract A, River Valley Addition in the North ½ of the Southwest ¼ of 
Section 15, Township 89 North, Range 48 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, North 
Sioux City, Union County, South Dakota as shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of North Sioux City: 
 

1. The City Council of North Sioux City hereby agrees to accept a Warranty Deed from River 
Valley, L.L.P. for the real estate legally described as: 
 

All that part of Tract A, River Valley Addition in the North ½ of the Southwest 
¼ of Section 15, Township 89 North, Range 48 West of the Fifth Principal 
Meridian, North Sioux City, Union County, South Dakota as shown on Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
and to maintain said street and right of way for public purposes. 
 

2. That the Warranty Deed attached hereto as Exhibit A from River Valley, L.L.P. to the City 
of North Sioux City is hereby approved. 

 
 
DATE ADOPTED:  December 21, 2015 
 

CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By:  Randy Fredericksen 
Its:  Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Susan Kloostra, Finance Officer 



Prepared by: 

 

Cody M. McCullough 

Attorney at Law 

614 Pierce Street, P.O. Box 27 

Sioux City, Iowa  51102-0027 

Phone:  (712) 277-4561 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 WARRANTY DEED  

 

 River Valley, L.L.P., a South Dakota limited liability partnership, Grantor, of 125 Gateway 

Drive, North Sioux City, Union County, South Dakota 57049, for and in consideration of One 

Dollar and other valuable consideration, GRANTS, CONVEYS AND WARRANTS to the City of 

North Sioux City, a South Dakota Municipal corporation, Grantee, of 504 River Drive, North 

Sioux City, Union County, South Dakota 57049, the following described real property in the 

County of Union, in the State of South Dakota: 

 

All that part of Tract A, River Valley Addition in the North ½ of the Southwest ¼ of 

Section 15, Township 89 North, Range 48 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, 

North Sioux City, Union County, South Dakota as shown on Exhibit “A” attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

The above described property is being dedicated to the City of North Sioux City for the intended 

purpose of a public street. 

 

Subject to any easements, covenants, conditions, reservations and restrictions of record, if any.  

 

This transfer is exempt from transfer fee pursuant to 43-4-22(2). 

 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
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Dated this _______ day of __________________, 2015. 

 

 

 

      River Valley, L.L.P. 

 

      By:________________________________________ 

            Rick Wegher, Managing Partner 

 

       

 

STATE OF ____________________) 

     ) ss 

COUNTY OF __________________) 

 

  

 On this _______ day of___________________, 2015, before me, a Notary Public in and for 

said State, personally appeared Rick Wegher, who acknowledged himself to be the Managing 

Partner of River Valley, L.L.P., a South Dakota limited liability partnership, and that he as such 

Managing Partner, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes 

therein contained, by signing the name of the limited liability partnership by himself as Managing 

Partner. 

 

 In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Notary Public 

      My commission expires:______________________



 

 

Exhibit “A” 
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ORDINANCE # 2015-____ 
 
TITLE 5.  AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ORDINANCE SECTION 
5.08.030.  
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY, 
SOUTH DAKOTA: 
 
  § 5.08.030 of the North Sioux City Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 
 
5.08.030 Sunday sales permitted by certain on-sale dealers and off sale package dealers. 
Memorial Day sales permitted. 
 
 Notwithstanding any of the other provisions of this chapter, any on-sale liquor dealer that applies, 
qualifies and receives a Sunday retail dealer classification and pays an annual fee of $200.00 to the City,  
may sell, serve, and allow to be consumed on the premises covered by their license, alcoholic beverages 
between the hours of seven a.m. on Sunday with the serving of food through two a.m. the following 
Monday. 
 Any licensed off-sale package dealer may sell alcoholic beverages between the hours of seven 
a.m. and two a.m. on the following Monday. 
 Any on-sale liquor dealer or off-sale package dealer may sell, serve and allow to be served (as 
applicable) on Memorial Day from seven a.m. through two a.m. on the following day.  (Ord. 383 § 4, 
2002: Ord. 362 § 4, 2002) Amended July, 2010. Effective ______________, 2016. 
 
  
  

EFFECTIVE DATE.  The above Ordinance shall be in full force and effect on 
_______________, 2016. 
 
 
Dated this _____ day of December, 2015. 
             
       _____________________________________ 
       Randy Frederickson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan Kloostra, Finance Officer 
 
 
 
First Reading:    
Second Reading:   
Published:   ____________________, 2015 
Effective Date:  ____________, 2016 
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ORDINANCE # 2015-____ 
 
TITLE 5.  AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GAMBLING ORDINANCE SECTION 5.20.020.  
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY, 
SOUTH DAKOTA: 
 
 § 5.20.020 of the North Sioux City Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 
 
5.20.020 License fee. 
 A. The annual additional license fee imposed by Section 5.20.010 shall be fifty dollars ($50.00) for 
each video lottery machine to which the privilege of locating a lottery machine on the premises has been 
granted and shall be paid at the same time and in the same manner as the fees paid pursuant to SDCL 35-
4-2. This annual additional license fee shall be imposed in such a manner that each video lottery machine 
to which the privilege of locating a lottery machine on the premises has been granted within the corporate 
limits of the city, shall pay the sum of fifty dollars ($50.00) per machine authorized at the licensed 
premises whether or not a machine is actually on the premises. 
 B. This annual additional license fee imposed by this chapter shall be paid into the general fund of the 
city. (Ord. 331 §§ 2, 3, 1998) 
 C. The total number of video lottery machines authorized in the corporate limits of the City by the 
Council is 568, but may be amended by further action of the Council. Effective ______________, 2016. 
 
  
  

EFFECTIVE DATE.  The above Ordinance shall be in full force and effect on 
_______________, 2016. 
 
 
Dated this _____ day of December, 2015. 
             
       _____________________________________ 
       Randy Frederickson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan Kloostra, Finance Officer 
 
 
 
First Reading:    
Second Reading:   
Published:   ____________________, 2015 
Effective Date:  ____________, 2016 



8.04.050 Collection and disposition of 

garbage, rubbish, waste ma-

terials, yard waste of com-

mercial establishments and 

educational facilities.

Commercial establishments and education-

al facilities or institutions within the city shall 

be responsible, at their own cost and expense, 

to store, collect, transport and dump all gar-

bage, rubbish, waste material, and yard waste 

as defined in this chapter in the manner de-

scribed, and as designated by the mayor, with 

the approval of the common council, commer-

cial and business establishments and educa-

tional facilities or institutions, shall provide 

for the removal of and the transportation of all 

garbage, rubbish, waste materials, and yard 

waste from their premises not less than once a 

week. (Prior code § 3.0205)

8.04.060 Cost--How collected.

A. The cost of collection and disposal of 

garbage, rubbish, and waste materials from 

family domestic units as defined in this chap-

ter, shall become a charge against each family 

domestic unit of each dwelling and shall be 

payable monthly, together with charges made 

by the city for water services furnished by the 

city to each such family domestic unit. A fair 

and reasonable charge for the collection of the 

contents from each family domestic unit shall 

be set by the common council.

B. In the event that the commercial and 

business establishment and educational facili-

ty or institution fails to provide for the collec-

tion and disposition of garbage, rubbish, waste 

materials, or yard waste as provided in Sec-

tion 8.04.050, the mayor, with the approval of 

the common council shall provide for the col-

lection and disposition thereof at a cost of the 

collection to be assessed against and collected 

from such commercial and business estab-

lishments and educational facility or institu-

tion for each time such collection and disposi-

tion is made.

C. A late payment penalty of five dollars 

($5.00) for each garbage collection bill for 

family domestic units will be added to each 

delinquent bill for each month of delinquency. 

(Prior code § 3.0206)(Amended December 

2003) (Amended 2008)

8.04.070 Conditions under which 

customers may haul.

Any family domestic unit, commercial and 

business establishment, educational facility or 

institution may haul garbage, rubbish, waste 

material and yard waste originating on the 

premises of such family domestic unit, com-

mercial and business establishment or educa-

tional facility or institution to a legal landfill, 

but each family domestic unit shall be re-

quired to pay the monthly charges hereinbe-

fore provided in Section 8.04.060(A). (Prior 

code § 3.0207)

8.04.080 Water-tight receptacle 

required.

It is unlawful for any person to haul 

through the streets or alleys of this city any 

garbage, rubbish, waste materials, or yard 

waste, unless contained in a water-tight tank 

or receptacle. (Prior code § 3.0208)

8.04.090 Violations--Penalties.

Any person or persons, firm or firms, cor-

poration or corporations violating any of the 

provisions of this chapter, shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor and shall, upon conviction 

thereof, be fined in a sum not exceeding Five

Hundred Dollars ($500.00). (Prior code § 

3.0209) (Amended 2007)
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Gallons Per 

Month 2015 Charge Per Month

Over 3000 Minimum plus $4.25 per 

thousand gallons in excess of 

3000 gallons

Gallons Per 

Month 

2016 Meter Size

Charge Per 

Month

0-3000 1 1/2" 31.50

0-3000 2" 44.25

0-3000 3" 64.50

0-3000 4" 107.25

0-3000 6" 219.75

0-3000 8" 279.75

0-3000 10" 317.25

Gallons Per 

Month 

2016 Charge Per Month

0-3000 Minimum according to meter 

size

Over 3000 Minimum plus $4.35 per 

thousand gallons in excess of 

3000 gallons

B. The above rate schedule shall be charged 

to and paid by all users, however, upon 

completing an application at City Hall, residents 

who are age sixty-five (65) or older shall receive 

a ten percent (10%) discount from the above 

rates. The City shall not pay for water.  Further, 

the City will provide water to the following 

entities at no cost: Community Center, Senior 

Citizens Center, Dakota Valley School Practice 

Field, Dakota Valley School Sports Complex, 

NSC/DV Sports Complex and North Merrill 

Boulevard. (Ord. 393 § 1 (part), Rule 21, 2002)

(Amended November 2013)

13.04.220 Water for building purposes.

Contractors, builders or others desiring water 

for building purposes, must make application to 

the utility superintendent therefore, who will 

make special arrangements for such supply as is 

required. (Ord. 393 § 1 (part), Rule 22, 2002)

13.04.230 Disconnection of water fee.

A. All commercial and residential water bills 

are due when the invoice is issued by the City. If 

the bills are not paid within thirty (30) days after 

the invoice date the bill is delinquent.  The City 

then reserves the right to discontinue water 

service to the delinquent customer by shutting 

off the water at the curb cock, after forwarding 

the customer a written notice of termination 10 

days prior to shutting off the customer's water.  

A late payment fee of $5.00 per month shall be 

assessed on any unpaid balance more than 30 

days delinquent.

B. If a commercial or residential water 

service is discontinued for non-payment of the 

utility bill the water service will be reconnected 

only after the following conditions have been 

met:

1. The account has been paid in full and 

there remains no balance due.

2. A One Hundred Dollar ($100.00) 

water deposit has been paid the city. The deposit 

will be waived if the city already has a deposit 

on file.

3. A Twenty Dollar ($20.00) reconnect 

fee has been paid to the city.

4. Water service will be restored only 

during the normal business hours.  For services 

to be reconnected after 3:30 p.m., or not during 

normal business hours or days, the customer will 

be charged an additional fee of Seventy-five 

Dollars ($75.00) for reestablishing service.  This 

Seventy-five Dollar ($75.00) fee will be 

assessed to the next month's utility bill.

5. No person shall turn on water service 

to any premises from which water has been 

turned off as provided for in this section, without 

written authority from the City water and sewer 

department.  If it is necessary to dig up the curb 

stop or shut off water for non-payment of the 

water bill, the cost of such work may be added 

to the water bill in addition to all other charges 

set forth in this ordinance.
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Chapter 13.12

WASTEWATER TREATEMENT 

USER CHARGES

Sections:

13.12.010 Declaration.

13.12.020 Definitions.

                       (Amended July, 2013)

13.12.030 User charge provisions.

(Amended 2007)

13.12.040 Class of user charges. (Amended 

January, 2010)

                       (Amended April, 2010)

                       (Amended July, 2013)

(Amended November, 2013)

13.12.050 Billing.

13.12.060 Other provisions.

13.12.070 Annual review.

13.12.010 Declaration.

It is determined and declared to be necessary 

and conductive to the protection of the public 

health, safety, welfare and convenience of the 

city to collect charges from all users who 

contribute wastewater to the city’s wastewater 

collection system. The proceeds of such charges 

so derived will be used for such public 

wastewater collection system and for payment of 

wastewater treatment charges by the city. (Ord. 

388 Art. 1, 2002: prior code § 8.0501)

13.12.020 Definitions.

Unless the context specifically indicates 

otherwise, the meaning of terms used in this 

chapter shall be as follows:

"BOD" (denoting biochemical oxygen 

demand) means the quantity of oxygen utilized 

in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter 

under standard laboratory procedure in five days 

at twenty (20) degrees Celsius.

"Commercial/industrial user" means any 

contributor to the city’s wastewater collection 

works whose lot, parcel or real estate, or 

building is used for purposes other than a single-

family dwelling. For purposes of the Chapter 

13.12, this definition and classification shall 

include multi-family dwellings.  

"Flow unit" shall mean a volume of liquid 

equal in quantity to one thousand (1,000) 

gallons.

"Industrial user’s" is a commercial user with a 

waste discharge as defined for a Class IV user.

"Normal domestic wastewater" shall mean 

wastewater that has a SOD concentration of not 

more than two hundred fifty (250) parts per

million and a suspended solids concentration of 

not more than three hundred (300) parts per 

million and a oil and grease content of not more 

than one hundred (100) parts per million.

"Oil and grease" means oil and grease as 

determined by the standard laboratory 

procedures for the Soxhlet Extraction method as 

defined in the current addition of Standard 

Methods.

"Operation and maintenance" means all 

expenditures during the useful life of the 

wastewater collection works for materials, labor, 

utilities, and other items which are necessary for 

managing and maintaining the sewage collection 

works to achieve the capacity and performance 

for which such works were designed and 

constructed.

Operation and maintenance charges shall be 

included in the sewer user charge and shall be 

levied in a proportional and adequate manner.

"Replacement charges" means expenditures 

for the obtaining and installing of equipment, 

accessories, or appurtenances that are necessary 

during the useful life of the wastewater 

collection works to maintain the capacity and 

performance for which such works were 

designed and constructed. Replacement charges 

shall be included in the sewer user charge and 

shall be levied in a proportional and adequate 

manner.

"Residential user" means any contributor to 

the city’s wastewater collection works whose 

lot, parcel of real estate, or building is used for 

single-family dwelling purposes only.
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who are age sixty-five (65) or older shall receive 

a ten percent (10%) discount from the above 

Base Rates.

2. Class II: Light Commercial/Industrial 

Users: Nonresidential users which contribute 

between zero (0) gpd and four hundred (400) 

gpd of less than or equal to normal domestic 

strength wastewater. For clarification, Class 

II shall include all multi-family dwelling 

units. 

Twenty-nine Dollars ($29.00) per month 

plus Three Dollars and Forty-five Cents ($3.45) 

per thousand (1,000) gallons of metered waste in 

excess of three thousand (3,000) gallons per 

month for operation and maintenance, including 

replacement of debt service effective for 

calendar year 2014.

Thirty Dollars ($30.00) per month plus 

Three Dollars and Fifty-five Cents ($3.55) per 

thousand (1,000) gallons of metered waste in 

excess of three thousand (3,000) gallons per 

month for operation and maintenance, including 

replacement of debt service effective for 

calendar year 2015.

Thirty-one Dollars ($31.00) per month plus 

Three Dollars and Sixty-five Cents ($3.65) per 

thousand (1,000) gallons of metered waste in 

excess of three thousand (3,000) gallons per 

month for operation and maintenance, including 

replacement of debt service effective for 

calendar year 2016.

3. Class III: Industrial Users: 

Nonresidential users which contribute more 

than four hundred (400) gpd of less than or 

equal to normal domestic strength 

wastewater, except for multi-family 

dwellings, which will be classified as Class II: 

Light Commercial/Industrial Users.

Forty-three Dollars ($43.00) per month plus 

Five Dollars and Thirteen Cents ($5.13) per 

thousand (1,000) gallons based on actual 

metered sales or estimated flows in accordance 

with availability for calendar year 2014.

Forty-four Dollars ($44.00) per month plus 

Five Dollars and Twenty-three Cents ($5.23) per 

thousand (1,000) gallons based on actual 

metered sales or estimated flows in accordance 

with availability for calendar year 2015.

Forty-five Dollars ($45.00) per month plus 

Five Dollars and Thirty-three Cents ($5.33) per 

thousand (1,000) gallons based on actual 

metered sales or estimated flows in accordance 

with availability for calendar year 2016.

(Ord. 388 Art. 4, 2002: prior code § 8.0504)

(Amended January, 2010) (Amended April, 

2010) (Amended July, 2013) (Amended 

November 2013)

13.12.050 Billing.

A. All users shall be billed monthly. Billings 

for any particular monthly period shall be made 

within thirty (30) days after the end of that 

billing period. Payments are due when the 

billings are made. Any payment not received 

within thirty (30) days after the billing is made 

shall be delinquent.

B. A late payment penalty of ten (10) percent 

of the user charge bill will be added to each 

delinquent bill for each thirty (30) days of 

delinquency. When any bill is thirty (30) days in 

default, rendition of water and/or sewer service 

to such premises shall be discontinued until such 

bill is paid following due notice of an 

opportunity or hearing.

C. The sewer use charge for residential users 

billed quarterly shall be the same for each of the 

four quarters of the calendar year, and shall be 

determined by quarterly water usage as shown 

by water meter readings taken in January, 

February or March of each calendar year, and 

shall be determined by the average monthly 

water usage as shown by water meter readings 

taken in January, February and March of each 

calendar year. The city will review water usage 
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QUAM & BERGLIN, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANTS 

110 WEST MAIN P.O. BOX 426 
ELK POINT, SOUTH DAKOTA 57025 

(605) 356-3374 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

City Council 
City of North Sioux City 
Union County, South Dakota 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City 
of North Sioux City, South Dakota, as of December 31, 2014 and for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements. We were not engaged to audit the financial statements of 
the discretely presented component unit. These financial statements collectively comprise the 
City's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Because 
of the matter described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on the Discretely Presented 
Component Unit" paragraph, however we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the discretely presented component unit. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
ct:::i,t;::.rn;::. 1ntc whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in to design audit procedures that are appropriate in circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, 
we no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
policies and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

that the audit evidence we 
for our audit opinions. 

obtained is 

1 

appropriate to provide a 



Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on the Discretely Presented Component Unit 

The financial statements of the Housing and Redevelopment Commission (HRC) have not been 
audited, and we were not engaged to audit the HRC financial statements as part of the City's basic 
financial statements. HRC's financial activities are included in the City's basic financial statements 
as a discretely presented component unit and represent the assets, net position, and revenues of 
the City's discretely presented component unit. 

Disclaimer of Opinion 

Because of the significance of the matter described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on the 
Discretely Presented Component Unit" paragraph, we have not been able to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the financial statements of the 
discretely presented component unit of the City of North Sioux City. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on those financial statements. 

Unmodified Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Sioux City, South Dakota as 
of December 31, 2014 and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, 
cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Schedules as listed in the 
Table of Contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The Combining Nonmajor Fund Financial 
Statements as listed in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the financial statements. 

Combining Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 

financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 

reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
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additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. In our opinion, the Combining Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements are fairly stated, in 
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 3, 2015, on our consideration of the City of North Sioux City's internal control over 
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City of North Sioux City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

O~o1 ¥'n, P.C. 
Quam and Berglin, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 
Elk Point, SD 

December 3, 2015 
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504 River Drive 
North Sioux City, SD 57049 
Phone (605) 232-4276 
Fax(605) 232-0506 

CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

This discussion and analysis presents an overview of the financial activities and financial position for the City of 
North Sioux City (the "City") for the year ended December 31, 2014. The information presented in this section 
should be considered in conjunction with the additional information furnished in the basic financial statements 
as well as notes to the financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• North Sioux City had a total increase in net position of $768,700 for the year. This resulted in a total 
ending net position of$39,392,080. 

• In 2014, several projects to upgrade and enhance the City's infrastructure were started. 
o Streeter Drive Well improvement project 
o New pumping equipment in the Lakeshore Lift Station 
o Martha Street Paving project 
o Storm Sewer Outlet 

• Construction was started on the City's new Ground Water Storage Tank and Pump Station. The project is 
scheduled to be completed in 2015. The budget for this project was set at $1,893,000. 

• The City is working with the SD Department of Transportation to resurface Highway 105. Project was 
awarded in 2014, but the project start was postponed until spring of 2015. 

• During 2014, construction was completed for the North Sioux City Community Library. The budget for 
this building was set at $1.3 million. The total project at completion was $1.8 million. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of three parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial 
statements including related notes, and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements 
include two types of statements that present different views of the City: 

• The governmental funds statements tell how general government services like public safety were financed 
in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. 

• Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the activities that the 
City operates like businesses. The City has three proprietary funds - the Water Fund, Sewer Fund and 
Garbage Fund. 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and 
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that 
further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. In addition to the required elements, 
we have included a section with combining statements that provide details about our non-major governmental 
funds, each of which are added together and presented in a single column in the basic financial statements. 

4 



City of North Sioux City 
Discussion and 

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the City 
government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of the overview section of the 
management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements. 

Figure A-1 

Major features of North Sioux City's Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Government-wide Fund Statements 
Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 

The activities of the City that Activities the City operates 

Scope Entire City government are not proprietary or fiduciary, similar to private businesses, 
(except component units) such as finance office, police, the water, sewer and garbage 

fire and parks. systems. 

*Balance Sheet 
*Balance Sheet 

Required *Statement of Net Position *Statement of Revenues, 
*Statement of Revenues, 

Financial Expenses and Changes in Fund 
Statements *Statement of Activities Expenditures and Changes in Net Position 

Fund Balances 
*Statement of Cash Flows 

Accounting Basis 
Accrual accounting and 

Modified accrual accounting 
Accrual accounting and and Measurement and current financial resources 

Focus economic resources focus 
focus 

economic resources focus 

All assets and liabilities, Only assets expected to be used 
Type of 

both financial and capital, up and liabilities that come due All assets and liabilities, both 
Asset/Liability 

and short-term and Jong-
during the year or soon financial and capital, and 

Information 
term 

thereafter; no capital assets short-term and long-term 
included 

' 

Revenues for which cash is 

All revenues and expenses 
received during or soon after 

Type of 
during year, regardless of the end of the year; All revenues and expenses 

Inflow /Outflow 
when cash is received or 

expenditures when goods or during the year, regardless of 
Information 

paid services have been received when cash is received or paid 
and payment is due during the 
year or soon thereafter. 

I 



City of North Sioux City 
Discussion and 

Government-Wide Fund Statements 

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar 
to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the government's assets 
and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities 
regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The two government-wide statements report the City's net position and how they have changed. Net position, the 
difference between the City's assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the City's financial health or position. 

• Increases or decreases in the City's net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is 
improving or deteriorating respectively. 

• To assess the overall health of the City, you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as 
changes in the City's property tax base and changes in the sales tax revenue base. 

The government-wide financial statements of the City are reported in two categories: 

• Governmental Activities - This category includes most of the City's basic services, such as police, cemetery, 
library, public works, parks department and general administration. Property taxes, sales taxes, charges 
for services, state and federal grants, and interest earnings finance most of these activities. 

• Business-type Activities - The City charges a fee to customers to help cover the costs of certain services it 
provides. The City's water, sewer and garbage systems are included here. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds - not the 
City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and 
spending for particular purposes. 

• State Law requires some of the funds. 
• The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show 

that it is properly using certain taxes and grants. 

The City has two kinds of funds: 

• - Most of the City's services are included in the governmental funds, which 

• 

focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash flow in and out and 
(2) balances at that are Consequently, the governmental funds 

m~r~c•rthere are more or 
programs. Because 
,,,,,r~_,.,,,,,, statements, we 

fund statements, or on the 
them . 



City of North Sioux City 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - CITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Position 

The City's combined net position increased by 1.99% between fiscal year 2013 and 2014, increasing by $768,700 
(See Table A-1). 

The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources. The statement presents the assets and 
liabilities in order of relative liquidity. The liabilities with average maturities greater than one year are reported 
in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one year. The long-term 
liabilities of the City, consisting of compensated absences payable, notes payable, sales tax revenue bonds payable, 
and water revenue bonds payable, have been reported in this manner on the Statement of Net Position. The 
difference between the City's assets and liabilities is its net position. 

TABLEA-1 

CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 

ST A TBVI ENT OF NET POSITION 

Government 

Governmental Business-Type Total 

Activities Activities Activities 

December 31, December 31, December 31, 

2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 

Current and Other Assets $ 6,897,733 $ 6,614,982 $ 5,119,974 $ 4,709,533 $12,017,707 $11,324,515 

Capital Assets 16,608,981 11,124,220 12, 191,438 27,733,201 29,465, 161 

Total Assets 23,506,714 23,888,705 16,244,194 16,900,971 39,750,908 40,789,676 

Long-Term Debt Outstanding 741,631 737,215 35,155 25,180 776,786 762,395 

Other Liabilities 262,964 243,801 87,778 391,400 350,742 635,201 

Total Liabilities 1,004,595 981,016 122,933 416,580 1, 127,528 1,397,596 

Net Position: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 15,910, 156 16,582,612 11,097,444 12,173,130 27,007,600 28,755,742 

Restricted 531,065 358,935 531,065 358,935 

Unrestricted 11,084,715 10,277,403 

Total Net Position $22,502, 119 $ 22,907,689 $16,121,261 $38,623,380 $ 39,392,080 

Increase (Decrease) Net Position 863,392 405,570 541 363,130 1,404,660 768,700 

Beginning Net Position 21,638,727 22,502.119 15,579,993 16,121,261 37,218.720 38,623,380 

Ending Net Position $ 22,502, 119 $ 22,907.689 $16,121,261 $16,484,391 $ 38,623,380 $ 39,392,080 

Percentage of Increase (Decrease) in 

Net Position 3.99% 1.80% 3.47% 2.25% 3.77% 
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Changes in Net Position 

The City's revenues totaled $4,954,719 (see Table A-2). Approximately 36% of the City's revenue comes from 
charges for services and 51 % comes from some type of tax (see Figure A-2). Another 4% comes from 
intergovernmental revenues and 1 % from interest earnings. The City's expenses (see Figure A-3) cover a range 
of services, with over half related to public works services (street maintenance, water, sewer and garbage 
services). 

TABLEA-2 

City of North Sioux City 

Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Business-Type Total 
Activities Activities Change 

December 31 December 31 December 31 

2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 

Revenues 

Program Revenues 

Charges for Services $ 205,137 $ 212,578 $ 1,813,944 $ 1,761,668 $ 2,019,081 $ 1,974,246 

Operating Grants and Contributions 1,481 49,495 1,481 49,495 

Capital Grants and Contributions 588,360 73,075 588,360 

General Revenues 

Taxes 2,377,369 2,544,810 2,377,369 2,544,810 

Revenue State Sources 114,412 128,816 114,412 128,816 

Unrestricted Investment Earnings 21,132 27,332 17,271 25,986 38,403 53,318 

Other General Revenue 86,275 206,327 86,275 206,327 

Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (63,026) (2,293) 

Total Revenues and Transfers 3,331,140 3,240,140 1,831,215 1,787,654 5,162,355 4,954,719 

Expenses 

General Government 461,534 531,033 461,534 531,033 

Public Safety 878.525 934,309 878,525 934.309 

Public Works 687,522 742,113 687,522 742,113 

Health & Welfare 13,615 31,040 13,615 31,040 

Culture & Recreation 211,101 251,779 211,101 251,779 

Conservation & Development 215,451 344,296 215,451 344,296 

Water 517,372 679,243 517,372 679,243 

Sewer 670,895 637,320 670,895 637,320 

Solid Waste 01 101,680 

Total Expenses 2,467,748 2,834,570 1,289,947 1,424,524 3,757,695 4,259,094 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 363.130 768.700 

NET POSITION BEGINNING 21,638,727 22,502,119 15,579.993 16,121.261 37,218,720 38,623,380 

NET POSITION ENDING 
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Figure A-2 

City of North Sioux City 
Sources of Revenues for Year 2014 

Charges for Services -
Capital Grants & 

Contributions 

1.0% 

Government 

4.3% 
Charges for Services -

Business 

Investment Earnings 

1.1% 

State Shared Revenues 

2.6% 

Miscellaneous Revenue 

4.2% 

Taxes 

51.3% 

Figure A-3 

35.5% 

City of North Sioux City 
Functional Expenses for Year 2014 

Conservation & 
Development 

8.1% 

Culture & Recreation 
5.9% 

Public Safety 
21.9% 

Sewer / 15.0% 

General Government 
12.5% 
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Governmental Activities 

Total governmental activities revenues for the City decreased approximately 3%. Total governmental activities 
expenses increased 15% because of increases in the cost of services and expenses related to the Public Works. 
(See previous Table A-2.) 

Business-Type Activities 

Revenues of the City's business-type activities decreased slightly, by 2%, to $1, 787,654 and expenses increased 
10% to $1,424,524. (As shown in previous Table A-2.) 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - CITY'S FUNDS 

The financial analysis of the City's funds mirror those highlighted in the analysis of governmental and business­
type activities presented above. The City's four governmental fund types are General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, 
Debt Service Fund and Capital Project Fund, and only three business-type funds are Water, Sewer and Garbage 
Funds. 

General Budgetary Highlights 

Budgets are monitored and amended to ensure budgetary compliance. 

CAP IT AL ASSET ADMINISTRATION 

The City made a concerted effort to establish and maintain the fixed assets and accumulated depreciation records 
for the general and proprietary funds during the year 2014. By the end of 2014, the City had invested $29,465,161 
in a broad range of capital assets, including construction in progress, buildings, various machinery and equipment, 
net of depreciation. (See Table A-3.) This amount represents a net decrease (including additions and deductions) 
of $1,731,959, or 6.25% over the prior year. 

Land 
Land Held for Sale 

Construction Work in 

Table A-3 
City of North Sioux City - Capital Assets 

(Net of Depreciation) 

Increase/ 

818,127 818,127 

(880,313) 

4,448,448 6,180.379 1,731,931 1,820,857 

Activities 

Increase/ 

1,790,081 
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LONG-TERM DEBT 

At year-end, the City had borrowings on a TIF Loan, Sewer Revenue Bonds and other long-term obligations. This 
is a decrease of 1.85% as shown on Table A-4 below. The City does not expect to increase its debt obligation. 

The City is liable for the accrued vacation leave payable to all full-time employees who have been employed for 
more than one year. Labor contracts also allow for a percentage of sick leave to be paid out upon termination, 
therefore, this percentage is also included in Accrued Leave Payable. 

The TIF loan is secured by increased property taxes to be collected (100% of the increase to the City of North 
Sioux City) on the parcels found within the TIF district until paid in full. 

Table A-4 
City of North Sioux City 

Outstanding Debt and Obligations 
Dollar Total 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Change Yo Change 

Compensated Absences 

TIF Loan - Ri-..er Valley 

DENR Loan 

Total Outstanding Debt and 
Obligations 

$ 

2013 
42,805 

698,825 

2014 
$ 46, 104 $ 

691, 111 

$ 737,215 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RA TES 

2013 2014 
8,379 $ 6,872 $ 1,792 3.50% 

(7,714) -1.10% 

26,776 18,309 (8,467) -31.62% 

$ 25, 181 $ (14,389) -1.85% 

Under the state mandated property tax freeze, property taxes one year to the next may increase 3% or an amount 
based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI), whichever is lower. This year property tax levy requests increased 3%. 

One of the primary sources of revenue to the City is based on taxable retail sales in the community (sales tax). The 
City has experienced a slight decrease in General Sales and Use Taxes of approximately 2% over the prior year. 

The City's business-type activities (water, sewer and garbage operations) expect to see an increase in revenues 
due to growth. Expenses will increase slightly due to the economy. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

is 
overview of the 

you have 
504 River 

investors and creditors with a 
for the money it receives. If 

Sioux Finance 

1 
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CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Primary Government 

ASSETS: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Taxes Receivable 
Accounts Receivable, Net 

Notes Receivable 

Due From Government 

Due From Component Unit 

Interest Receivable 

Inventory 

Restricted Deposits 
Prepaid Expenses 
Capital Assets: 

Land and Construction Work in Progress 
Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts Payable 
Contracts Payable - Retainage 
Accrued Wages Payable 
Accrued Other Payables 
Accrued Taxes Payable 
Customer Deposits Payable 
Unearned Revenue 
Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Due Within One Year 
Due in More than One Year 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION: 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted for: 

Cumulative Reserve - SDPAA 
Economic 
Debt Services 

Unrestricted 

TOT AL NET POSITION 

attached 

and Promotion 

are an part of 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

$ 3,203,462.15 $ 1,445,623.27 $ 
3,096,637.14 3,008,968.17 

15,993.91 
32,071.14 135,290.58 

56,076.72 

58,735.94 

66,000.00 

3,311.13 2,848.50 

23,794.73 109, 152.46 
26,627.71 
32,271.17 7,649.79 

1,642,054.55 1,302,007.97 
15,631,668.57 10,889,430.52 

23,888, 704.86 16,900,971.26 

80,531.79 213,632.25 
67,724.42 128,613.74 
15,724.16 3,781.25 

1,297.15 
1,385.09 

40,278.87 
78,435.82 3,796.50 

737,214.69 15,788.99 

981,015.97 416,579.96 

16,582,612.11 12,173,129.96 

financial statements. 

13 

Total 

4,649,085.42 
6, 105,605.31 

15,993.91 
167,361.72 

56,076.72 

58,735.94 

66,000.00 

6,159.63 

132,947.19 

26,627.71 
39,920.96 

2,944,062.52 
26,521,099.09 

40,789,676.12 

294,164.04 
196,338.16 

19,505.41 
1,297.15 
1,385.09 

40,278.87 
82,232.32 

28,755,742.07 

3,949.50 

Unaudited 
Component 

Unit 

$ 33,870.01 

70,000.00 
521,275.20 

625,145.21 

11,415.00 

41,489.58 
530,015.00 



CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position 

Operating Capital Primary Government Unaudited 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component 

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Unit 

Governmental Activities: 
General Government $ 531,032.54 $ 1,497.54 $ $ $ (529,535.00) $ $ (529,535.00) $ 
Public 934,309.18 3,566.61 49,494.64 (881,247.93) (881,247.93) 
Public Works 742, 113.13 98,392.35 (643, 720. 78) (643,720.78) 
Health and Welfare 31,039.87 (31,039.87) (31,039.87) 
Culture and Recreation 251,778.81 1,014.00 (250,764.81) (250, 764.81) 
Conservation & 344,295.55 (344,295.55) (344,295.55) 
Miscellaneous 108,107.03 73,075.00 181,182.03 181,182.03 

Total Governmental Activities 212,577.53 49,494.64 73,075.00 {2,499,421.91) {2,499,421.91) 

Activities: 
Water 679,243.52 727,468.84 48,225.32 48,225.32 
Sewer 637,319.88 930,255.50 292,935.62 292,935.62 _... 

3 (4,017.32) (4,017.32) 
~ 

Activities 1,761,668.47 337,143.62 

Total Government $ 73,075.00 {2,499,421.91) 337,143.62 (2, 162,278.29) 

Unit: 

and Redevelooment $ 149,908.06 {20,918.30) 

General Revenues: 

Taxes: 

Property Taxes 437,309.30 437,309.30 

Sales and Use Taxes 2, 107,501.30 2, 107,501.30 
State Shared Revenues 128,815.66 128,815.66 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 27,332.13 25,986.44 53,318.57 33.54 
Miscellaneous Revenue 206,326.75 206,326.75 650.30 
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets {2,293.33) 47,000.00 

Total General Revenues 2,904,991.81 2,930,978.25 ~683.84 

Change in Net Position 405,569.90 363,130.06 768,699.96 26,765.54 

Net Position - Beginning 22,502, 118.99 16, 121,261.24 38,623,380.23 ~460.09 

Net Position - Ending $ 22,907,688.89 $ 16,484,391.30 $ 39,392,080.19 $ 42,225.63 

::itr:::irhi:>rt notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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_.. 
01 

ASSETS: 
Cash and 
Investments 

Accounts Kece1vah1o 
Notes Receivable 
Due from 
Due From Government 
Due From . 
Interest Receivable 

Restricted 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES: 
Liabilities: 

Unearned Revenue 
Total Liabilities 

CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Major Funds Non111ajor 
Additional Liquor/Lodging 911 Other Total 

General 
Fund 

$ 2,685,212.99 $ 
1,938,303.63 

15,993.91 
30,236.23 

283,159.17 
46,893.38 
66,000.00 

1,706.57 
23,794.73 
26,627.71 
32,271.17 

Sales Tax Dining Sales Emergency Governmental Governmental 
Fund Tax Fund Fund Fund Funds 

451,339.38 $ 1,000.00 $ 6,145.74 $ 59,764.04 $ 3,203,462.15 
690,664.78 467,668.73 3,096,637.14 

15,993.91 
1,834.91 32,071.14 

56,076.72 56,076.72 
283, 159.17 

7,312.33 4,530.23 58,735.94 
66,000.00 

765.76 838.80 3,311.13 
23,794.73 
26,627.71 

.17 

$ 5, 150, 199.49 $ 1, 150,082.25 $ 474,037.76 $ 7,980.65 $ 115,840.76 $ 6,898, 140.91 

$ 30,628.97 $ $ 48, 182.32 $ 1, 720.50 $ 

15,724.16 

1,385.09 

78,435.82 
126, 174.04 

67,724.42 

67,724.42 

209,389.46 73,769.71 

257,571.78 75,490.21 

$ 80,531.79 
67,724.42 
15,724.16 

1,385.09 
283,159.17 

78,435.82 
526,960.45 



r 1otorror1 Inflows of Resources: 

Unavailable Revenue Prooertv Taxes 15,993.91 15,993.91 

Fund Balances: 

23,794.73 23,794.73 
32,271.17 32,271 17 

66,000.00 66,000.00 
Cumulative Reserve SDPAA 26,627.71 26,627.71 

Restricted: 
and Promotion 216,465.98 56,076.72 272,542.70 

55,814.54 55,814.54 
Debt Service 3,949.50 3,949.50 

Additions 1,082,357.83 1,082,357.83 
A-.-:-.--....1. _... 

CT> 
4,859,337.93 (67,509.56) 4, 791,828.37 

Total Fund Balances 5,008,031.54 1,082,357.83 216,465.98 (67,509.56) 115,840.76 6,355, 186.55 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCESANDFUNDBALANCES $5,150,199.49 $ 1,150,082.25 $ 474,037.76 $ 7,980.65 

The attached notes are an part of these financial statements. 



CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement 
of Net Position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
funds. 

Cost of Assets: 
(Less) Accumulated Depreciation 

Long-term liabilities, including loans payable and 
accrued leave payable, are not due and payable in the 
current period and therefore are not reported in the 
funds. 

Loans Payable 
Accrued Leave Payable 

Assets such as taxes receivable (delinquent), special 
assessments receivable (current, delinquent and 
deferred) and certain notes receivables are not available 
to pay for current period expenditures and therefore are 
deferred in the funds but are revenue in the government­
wide financial statements. 

Net Position - Governmental Funds 

$ 23,471,213.56 
(6, 197,490.44) 

$ 691, 111.01 
46,103.68 

The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 6,355,186.55 

17,273,723.12 

(737,214.69) 

15,993.91 

$ 22,907,688.89 
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General Government: 

71,403.94 71,403.94 

Elections 3,375.43 3,375.43 

Financial Administration 246,407.16 246,407.16 

Other 95,320.51 

Total General Government 416,507.04 416,507.04 

Public 
Police 726,197.66 79,106.61 805,304.27 

Center 25,250.35 25,250.35 
Civil Defense 

Total Public 752,199.33 79, 106.61 831,305.94 

Public Works: 

Streets and Dike 452,014.36 452,014.36 
Cemeteries 5,070.23 

Total Public Works 457,084.59 457,084.59 

...... Health and Welfare: 
<.O 

Health 7,366.93 7,366.93 
Senior Center 23,285.61 

Total Health and Welfare 30,652.54 30,652.54 

Culture and Recreation: 

Recreation 6,005.23 6,005.23 
Parks 45,560.69 45,560.69 
Libraries 102,053.13 45,756.13 147,809.26 

Total Culture and Recreation 153,619.05 45,756.13 199,375.18 

1nservation and 

Economic 

and Assistance 7,510.50 153,475.87 160,986.37 
Economic Opportunity 32,699.00 150,610.18 183,309.18 

Total Conservation and Develooment 40,209.50 304,086.05 344,295.55 



N 
0 

Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenue Over 

;:,a1e or 1VJumc1pa1 t'ropen:y 

CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (Continued) 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Major Funds 
Liquor/ 

Additional Lodging 911 
General Sales Tax Dining Sales Emergency 

Fund Fund Tax Fund Fund 

189,995.33 1,029,089.79 

2,040,267.38 1,074,845.92 304,086.05 79,106.61 

453,269.96 (598,623.22) {1}7,987.28) 5,448.56 

47,000.00 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 47,000.00 

Net Change in Fund Balances 500,269.96 (598,623.22) (177,987.28) 5,448.56 

Fund Balance 4,507,761.58 1,680,981.05 394,453.26 (72,958.12) 

Nonmajor 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

7,714.03 

5,856.61 

5,856.61 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 5,008,031.54 $ 1,082,357.83 $ 216,465.98 $ (67,509.56) $ 115,840.76 

::itt::il"h""rt notes are an part of these financial statements. 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

7,714.03 
1,219,085.12 

3,506,019.99 

(312,035.37) 

47,000.00 

47,000.00 

(265,035.37) 

6,620,221.92 -
$ 6,355, 186.55 



CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, however, in 
the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This 
is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense 
in the current period. 

In the Statement of Activities, the loss on disposal of assets is reported, 
whereas in the governmental funds, the disposal of capital assets is not 
reflected. 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require 
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. (e.g., accrued interest and leave 
expenses) 

Repayment of debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the 
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 

Governmental funds report property taxes, special assessments, and 
certain receivables as revenue when cash is received, but the 
Statement of Activities includes these items as revenues when earned. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 
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$(265,035.37) 

667,035.04 

(2,293.33) 

(3,298.16) 

7,714.03 

1,447.69 



CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
BALANCE SHEET 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Enterprise Funds 
Non major 

Major Funds Fund 
Water Sewer Garbage 
Fund Fund Fund Totals 

ASSETS: 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 399,646.83 $ 1,025,247.28 $ 20,729.16 $ 1,445,623.27 
Investments 1,461,005.54 1,529,539.87 18,422.76 3,008,968.17 
Accounts Receivable, Net 53,866.46 72,901.45 8,522.67 135,290.58 
Due from Other Funds 
Interest Receivable 1,496.01 1,331.78 20.71 2,848.50 
Inventory of Supplies 13,270.96 95,881.50 109, 152.46 
Prepaid Expenses 4,296.04 3,353.75 7,649.79 

Total Current Assets 1,933,581.84 2,728,255.63 47,695.30 4, 709,532. 77 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital Assets: 

Land 60,780.56 37,503.28 98,283.84 
Buildings 2,216,651.22 2,216,651.22 
Improvement other than Buildings 7, 166,610.56 6,253,499.04 13,420, 109.60 
Machinery and Equipment 1,522,285.29 622,571.37 2, 144,856.66 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (3,924,204. 70) (2,967,982.26) (6,892, 186.96) 

Construction Work in Process 1,203, 724.13 1,203, 724.13 
Total Noncurrent Assets 8,245,847.06 3,945,591.43 12, 191,438.49 

TOTAL ASSETS $10, 179,428.90 $ 6,673,847.06 $ 47,695.30 $ 16,900,971.26 

LIABILITIES: 
Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable $ 179,406.79 $ 25,913.97 $ 8,311.49 $ 213,632.25 
Retainage Payable 128,613.74 128,613.74 
Accrued Wages Payable 1,768.92 2,012.33 3,781.25 
Accrued Other Payables 1,297.15 1,297.15 
Customer Deposits 40,278.87 40,278.87 
Accrued Leave Payable - Current 3,435.84 3,435.83 6,871.67 
Unearned Revenue 3,796.50 3,796.50 
Other Long-Term Debt - Current 7,445.98 1,471.34 8,917.32 

Total Current Liabilities 364,746.64 32,833.47 9,608.64 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Other Long-Term Debt 1 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1 

NET POSITION: 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 8,230,559.43 3,942,570.53 
Unrestricted Net Position 1 

Total Net Position 9,806,840.61 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 

The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Entererise Funds 
Nonmajor 

Major Funds Fund 
Water Sewer Garbage 
Fund Fund Fund Totals 

012erating Revenue: 
Charges for Goods and Services 

(Revenues Securing Debt Issues) $ 723,289.89 $ 924,445.98 $ $ 1,647,735.87 
Charges for Goods and Services 103,944.13 103,944:13 

Miscellaneous 4,178.95 5,809.52 9,988.47 

Total Operating Revenue 727,468.84 103,944.13 1,761,668.47 

012erating Ex12enses: 
Personal Services 92,560.77 87,383.23 179,944.00 
Other Current Expense 327,241.95 324, 114.42 107,961.45 759,317.82 
Depreciation 258,358.59 225,724.36 484,082.95 

Total Operating Expenses 678, 161.31 637,222.01 107,961.45 1,423,344.77 

Operating Income (Loss) 49,307.53 293,033.49 (4,017.32) 338,323.70 

Nono12erating Revenue {Ex12ense}: 
Interest Income 12,576.58 11,092.31 2,317.55 25,986.44 
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges {1,082.21) {97.87) {1,180.08) 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 11,494.37 10,994.44 24,806.36 

Change in Net Position 60,801.90 304,027.93 (1,699.77) 363, 130.06 

Net Position - Beginning 9, 7 46,038. 71 6,335,436.10 39,786.43 16, 121,261.24 

NET POSITION - ENDING $ 9,806,840.61 $ 6,639,464.03 $ 38,086.66 

The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Enterprise Funds 
Nonmajor 

Major Funds Fund 
Water Sewer Garbage 

Fund Fund Totals 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Cash Receipts from Customers $ 713,333.03 $ 919,813.89 $ 104,979.60 $ 1,738, 126.52 
Cash Receipts from lnterfund Services Provided 12,199.80 7,047.49 19,247.29 
Cash Payments to Employees for Services (92,849. 71) (87,218.29) (180,068.00) 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (31,224.57) {107,638.45) {460,033. 75) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 601,458.55 518,472.36 (2,658.85) 1,117,272.06 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash Loaned to Other Funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Noncapital 

Financing Activities 4.00 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Purchase of Capital Assets (1,280,483.33) (270,818.04) (1,551,301.37) 
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (7,069.93) (1,397.06) (8,466.99) 
Interest Paid on Capital Debt {1,082.21) (97.87) (1,180.08) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities {1,288,635.47) (272,312.97) {1,560,948.44) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of Investment Securities (10,761.56) (11,280.36) (119.13) (22,161.05) 
Interest Earnings 12,927.79 11,314.03 2,325.26 26,567.08 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 2,166.23 2,206.13 4,406.03 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ ~685,006.69) $ 246,193.06 $ {439,266.35) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year $ 1,084,653.52 $ 779,054.22 $ 21, 181.88 $ 1,884,889.62 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 399,646.83 1,025,247.28 

Net Increase (Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ (685,006.69) $ 246, 193.06 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

20,729.16 _1,;;_r_;_,;_;:..2,.;=.:,=-'­

$ (439,266.35) 

Operating Income (Loss) $ 49.307.53 $ 293,033.49 $ (4,017.32) $ 338,323.70 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 1-vr11::.nc•c 

Change in Assets and Liabilities: 
Receivables 
Inventories 
Prepaid 
Accounts and Other Payables 
Accrued Wages '"'"'''<>"'"' 
Accrued Leave Payable 
Unearned Revenue 
Customer Deposits 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

258,358.59 

(2,062.85) 
(2,565.74} 

(536.64) 
299,119.76 

464.85 
(753.79) 
(501 

The attached notes are an integral part these financial statements. 
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(3,394. 12) 
54.50 

220.49 
2,668.70 

918.74 
(753.80) 

1 

484,082.95 

323.00 



CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Financial Reporting Entity: 

The reporting entity of the City of North Sioux City consists of the primary government (which includes all 
of the funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that make up the legal entity, 
plus those funds for which the primary government has a fiduciary responsibility, even though those 
fiduciary funds may represent organizations that do not meet the criteria for inclusion in the financial 
reporting entity); those organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable; and 
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary 
government are such that their exclusion would cause the financial reporting entity's financial statements 
to be misleading or incomplete. 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary 
government are financially accountable. The City is financially accountable if its Governing Board 
appoints a voting majority of another organization's governing body and it has the ability to impose its will 
on that organization, or there is a potential for that organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or 
impose specific financial burdens on, the City (primary government). The City may also be financially 
accountable for another organization if that organization is fiscally dependent on the City. 

The Housing and Redevelopment Commission of North Sioux City, South Dakota (Commission) is a 
proprietary fund-type, discretely presented component unit. The five members of the Commission are 
appointed by the Mayor, with the approval of the Governing Board, for five-year, staggered terms. The 
Commission elects its own chairperson and recruits and employs its own management personnel and 
other workers. The Governing Board, though, retains the statutory authority to approve or deny or 
otherwise modify the Commission's plans to construct low-income housing units, or to issue debt, which 
gives the Governing Board the ability to impose its will on the Commission. Separately issued financial 
statements of the Housing and Redevelopment Commission may be obtained from the North Sioux City 
Housing and Redevelopment Commission, P.O. Box 338, North Sioux City, SD 57049. 

The City is a member of the South Dakota Municipal League, the Siouxland Initiative, and the Siouxland 
Interstate Metropolitan Planning Council. 

b. Basis of Presentation: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting entity 
as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements 
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are 
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type 
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by 
recipients of goods and services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are 
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 
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Fund Financial Statements: 

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to 
be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds 
are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is 
placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if 
it is the primary operating fund of the City or it meets the following criteria: 

1. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, 
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 
10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and 

2. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, 
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 
5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined, or 

3. Management has elected to classify one or more governmental or enterprise funds as major for 
consistency in reporting from year to year, or because of public interest in the fund's operations. 

The funds of the City financial reporting entity are described below: 

Governmental Funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is 
always considered to be a major fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other 
than debt service or capital projects. 

Additional Sales Tax Fund- To account for the additional two percent sales tax, the proceeds of which 
are allocated eighty percent to the General Fund and twenty percent to be used only for capital 
improvements, land acquisition, and debt retirement. Only the designated twenty percent is accounted 
for in the Additional Sales Tax Fund. (City Ordinance 3.12.050) This is a major fund. 

Liquor, Lodging and Dining Fund- To account for the collection of a one percent tax on the gross 
receipts of lodgings, alcoholic beverages, prepared food and admissions which tax shall be used for the 
purpose of land acquisition; architectural fees; construction costs; payments for civic center, auditorium 
or athletic facility building, including the maintenance, staffing and operations of such facilities; and the 
promotion and advertising for the city (SDCL 10-52A-2). This fund may be established at the direction of 
the governing body through local ordinance. This is a major fund. 

911 Emergency Fund - A special revenue fund established from the collection of a telephone surcharge 
to be used by the Police Department for providing emergency services. 

The remaining Special Revenue Fund, namely the Grant Revolving Loan Fund is not considered a major 
fund. 

Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. 

:...=~-!..!:=.L..-:.....::::!.!....:..:..:..:::.:..:.!.!.!.::::.!.:.!:....:....:.:.=.=~==::.::...:....=!..!!:!. - A debt service fund to used to account for the 
accumulation resources for and the payment of, general long-term debt principal financed by and 
payable to the contractor of the River Valley TIF project. This is not a major fund. 
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Proprietary Funds: 

Enterprise Funds - enterprise funds may be used to report any activity for which a fee is charged to 
external users for goods or services. Activities are required to be reported as enterprise funds if any one 
of the following criteria is met. Governments should apply each of these criteria in the context of the 
activity's principle revenue sources. 

a. The activity is financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues from 
fees and charges of the activity. Debt that is secured by a pledge of net revenues from fees and 
charges and the full faith and credit of a related primary government or component unit-even if 
that government is not expected to make any payments-is not payable solely from fees and 
charges of the activity. (Some debt may be secured, in part, by a portion of its own proceeds 
but should be considered as payable "solely" from the revenues of the activity.) 

b. Laws or regulations require that the activity's costs of providing services, including capital costs 
(such as depreciation or debt service), be recovered with fees and charges, rather than with 
taxes or similar revenues. 

c. The pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover it costs, 
including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service). 

Water Fund - Financed primarily by user charges, this fund accounts for the construction and operation 
of the municipal waterworks system and related facilities. (SDCL 9-47-1) This is a major fund. 

Sewer Fund - Financed primarily by user charges, this fund accounts for the construction and operation 
of the municipal sanitary sewer system and related facilities. (SDCL 9-48-2) This is a major fund. 

Garbage Fund - Financed primarily by user charges, this fund accounts for the operation of the garbage 
collection service. This is not a major fund. 

c. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting: 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the various 
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" revenues and expenditures or expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement 
focus. 

Measurement Focus: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, both governmental and 
business-type activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus, applied on the 
accrual basis of accounting. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting are applied to governmental fund types, while the "economic resources" 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting are applied to the proprietary funds. 

Basis of Accounting: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental, business­
type, and component unit activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
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accrual basis of accounting, revenues and related assets are recorded when earned (usually when the 
right to receive cash vests); and, expenses and related liabilities are recorded when an obligation is 
incurred (usually when the obligation to pay cash in the future vests). 

Fund Financial Statements: 

All governmental fund types are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their 
revenues, including property taxes, are recognized when they become measurable and available. 
"Available" means resources are collected or to be collected soon enough after the end of the fiscal year 
that they can be used to pay the bills of the current period. The accrual period does not exceed one bill­
paying cycle, and for the City of North Sioux City, the length of that cycle is 45 days. The revenues 
which were accrued at December 31, 2014, are taxes receivable, amounts due from other governments 
for grants, and other receivables due within 45 days. 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, receivables may be measurable but not available. 
Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period. Reported deferred inflows of resources are those where asset recognition 
criteria have been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. 

Expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this 
general rule include principal and interest on general long-term debt which are recognized when due. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are 
recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred. 

d. lnterfund Eliminations and Reclassifications: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

In the process of aggregating data for the government-wide financial statements, some amounts reported 
as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements have been eliminated or reclassified, 
as follows: 

In order to minimize the grossing-up effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental and 
business-type activities columns of the primary government, amounts reported as interfund receivables 
and payables have been eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns, except for 
the net, residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented 
as Internal Balances. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund receivables (reported in "Advance to" asset accounts) are 
equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance classification account which indicates that they do not 
constitute "available spendable resources" since they are not a component of net current assets. Current 
portions of interfund receivables (reported in "Due from" asset accounts) are considered "available 
spendable resources." 

e. 

For the purpose of financial reporting, "cash and cash equivalents" includes all demand and savings 
accounts and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with a term to maturity at date of 
acquisition of three months or less. Investments in open-end mutual fund shares, or similar investments 
in external investment pools, are also considered to be cash equivalents. 

Investments classified in the financial statements consist primarily of certificates of deposit whose term to 
maturity at date of acquisition exceeds three months, and/or those types of investment authorized by 
South Dakota Codified Laws (SDCL) 4-5-6. 
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f. Capital Assets: 

Capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and all other tangible or intangible 
assets that are used in operations and that have initial useful lives extending beyond a single reporting 
period. Infrastructure assets are long-lived capital assets that normally are stationary in nature and 
normally can be preserved for significantly greater number of years than most capital assets. 

The accounting treatment over capital assets depends on whether the assets are used in governmental 
fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or 
fund financial statements. 

Government-Wide Statements: 

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated cost, where actual cost could not be 
determined. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated. 
Reported cost values include ancillary charges necessary to place the asset into its intended location 
and condition for use. Subsequent to initial capitalization, improvements or betterments that are 
significant and which extend the useful life of a capital asset are also capitalized. 

The total December 31, 2014 balance of governmental activities capital assets includes approximately 
1.02% for which the costs were determined by estimates of the original costs. The total December 31, 
2014 balance of capital assets for business-type activities are valued at original costs. These estimated 
original costs were established by reviewing applicable historical costs of similar items and basing the 
estimations thereon. 

Infrastructure assets used in general government operations, consisting of certain improvements other 
than buildings, including roads, bridges, sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems, acquired 
prior to January 1, 2004, were not required to be capitalized by the City. Infrastructure assets acquired 
since January 1, 2004 are recorded at cost, and classified as "Improvements Other than Buildings." 

For governmental activities capital assets, construction-period interest is not capitalized, in accordance 
with USGMP, while for capital assets used in business-type activities/proprietary fund's operations, 
construction period interest is capitalized in accordance with USGMP. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the government­
wide Statement of Activities, with net investment in capital assets reflected in the Statement of Net 
Position. Accumulated depreciation is reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Position and 
on each proprietary fund's Statement of Net Position. 

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset 
accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the 
government-wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows: 

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated 
Threshold l\llethod Useful Life 

Land and Land Rights 
Improvements other than Buildings $ 
Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 

All 
50,000 
50,000 

5,000 

Land is an inexhaustible capital asset and is not depreciated. 

Fund Financial Statements: 
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In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for 
as Capital Outlay expenditures of the appropriate governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets 
used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for on the accrual basis, the same as in the 
government-wide statements. 

g. Long-Term Liabilities: 

The accounting treatment of long-term liabilities depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the 
government-wide or fund financial statements. 

All long-term liabilities to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as 
liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term liabilities primarily consist of state revolving 
loans, notes payable, and compensated absences. 

In the fund financial statements, debt proceeds are reported as revenues (other financing sources), while 
payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures when they become due. The accounting 
for proprietary fund long-term debt is on the accrual basis, the same in the fund statements as in the 
government-wide statements. 

h. Program Revenues: 

Program revenues derive directly from the program itself or from parties other than the City's taxpayers 
or citizenry, as a whole. Program revenues are classified into three categories, as follows: 

1. Charges for services - These arise from charges to customers, applicants, or others who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from the goods, services, or privileges provided, or are otherwise directly affected 
by the services. 

2. Program-specific operating grants and contributions - These arise from mandatory and voluntary 
non-exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or individuals that are restricted for 
use in a particular program. 

3. Program-specific capital grants and contributions - These arise from mandatory and voluntary non­
exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or individuals that are restricted for the 
acquisition of capital assets for use in a particular program. 

i. Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred inflows 
and deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period or periods. These items will not bw recognized as an outflow of 
resources until the applicable future period. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred inflows 
of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent acquisitions of net position that applies to a future 
period or periods. These items will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until the applicable future 
period. 

j. Proprietary Funds Revenue and Expense Classifications: 

In the proprietary fund's Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, revenues and 
expenses are classified in a manner consistent with how they are classified in the Statement of Cash 
Flows. That transactions for which related cash flows are reported as capital and related financing 
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activities, noncapital financing activities, or investing activities are not reported as components of 
operating revenues or expenses. 

k. Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

The City pools the cash resources of its funds for cash management purposes. The proprietary funds 
essentially have access to the entire amount of their cash resources on demand. Accordingly, each 
proprietary fund's equity in the cash management pool is considered to be cash and cash equivalents for 
the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows. 

I. Equity Classifications: 

Government-wide Statements: 

Equity is classified as net position and is displayed in three components: 

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation (if applicable) and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, 
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. 

2. Restricted Net Position - Consists of net position with constraints places on their use either by (a) 
external groups such as creditors, granters, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; 
or (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

3. Unrestricted Net Position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net 
investment in capital assets." 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance, and may distinguish between "Nonspendable", 
"Restricted", "Committed", "Assigned" and "Unassigned" components. Proprietary fund equity is classified 
the same as in the government-wide financial statements. 

m. Application of Net Position: 

It is the City's policy to first use restricted net position, prior to the use of unrestricted net position, when 
an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. 

n. Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures: 

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASS) No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the Municipality classifies governmental fund balances as 
follows: 

• Nonspendable - Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not 
in spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints. 

• Restricted - Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which 
are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed - Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that 
are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of 
decision making authority and does not lapse at year-end. 

• Assigned - Includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes 
that are neither considered, restricted, or committed. Fund Balance may be assigned by the 
Municipal Council. 

• Unassigned - Includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been 
classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other 
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governmental funds. 

The City uses restricted/committed amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such as a grant agreement 
requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the Government would first use committed, then 
assigned, and lastly, unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made. 

The City does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy. 

2. Violations of Finance Related Legal and Contractual Provisions 

The City is prohibited by statute from spending in excess of appropriated amounts at the department 
level. The following represents the significant overdrafts of the expenditures compared to appropriations: 

Liquor, Lodging, and Dining Sales Tax Fund 

Conservation and Development 

Activity December 31, 2014 

Economic Development and Assistance $ 37,475.87 
Economic Opportunity 17,933.18 

The Governing Board plans to monitor and amend future budgets to ensure that legally appropriated 
expenditures are not exceeded. 

3. Deposits and Investments Credit Risk, Concentrations of Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk 

The City follows the practice of aggregating the cash assets of various funds to maximize cash 
management efficiency and returns. Various restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by 
statutes. These restrictions are summarized below: 

Deposits - The City's cash deposits are made in qualified public depositories as defined by SDCL 4-6A-
1, 9-22-6, 9-22-6.1, and 9-22-6.2, and may be in the form of demand or time deposits. Qualified 
depositories are required by SDCL 4-6A-3 to maintain at all times, segregated from their other assets, 
eligible collateral having a value equal to at least 100 percent of the public deposit accounts which 
exceed deposit insurance such as the FDIC and NCUA. In lieu of pledging eligible securities, a qualified 
public depository may furnish irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by Federal Home Loan Banks 
accompanied by written evidence of that bank's public debt rating which may not be less than "AA" or a 
qualified public depository may furnish a corporate surety bond of a corporation authorized to do 
business in South Dakota. 

Investments - In general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits City funds to be invested in (a) securities of the United 
States and securities guaranteed by the United States government either directly or indirectly or (b) 
repurchase agreements fully collateralized by securities described in (a) above; or in shares of an open­
end, no-load fund administered by an investment company whose investments are in securities described 
in (a) above and repurchase agreements described in {b) above. Also SDCL § 4-5-9, requires investments 
to be in the physical custody of the political subdivision or may be deposited in a safekeeping account with 
any bank or trust company designated by the political subdivision as its fiscal agent. 

Credit Risk - State Laws limits eligible investments for the City, as discussed above. The City has no 
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. 

As of December 31, 2014, the City had the following investments: 
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External Investment Pools: 

SDFIT-GCR 
Credit Rating 

Unrated 
Value 

$800,088.19 

The South Dakota Public Fund Investment Trust (SDFIT) is an external investment pool created for 
South Dakota local government investing. It is regulated by a nine member board with representation 
from municipalities, school districts, and counties. The net asset value of the SDFIT money market 
account (GCR) is kept at one dollar per share by adjusting the rate of return on a daily basis. Earnings 
are credited to each account on a monthly basis. 

Interest Rate Risk - The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities 
as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - The City places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one 
issuer. 

Assignment of Investment Income - State law allows income from deposits and investments to be 
credited to either the General Fund or the fund making the investment. The City's policy is to credit all 
income from investments to the fund making the investment. 

4. Receivables and Payables 

Receivables and payables are not aggregated in the financial statements. The City expects all 
receivables to be collected within one year, except for $122,076.72 of receivables related to economic 
development loans and note receivable described in Note 11. 

5. Inventory 

Inventory in the General Fund consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. Supply inventories 
are recorded at cost. 

Inventory acquired for resale in the proprietary funds is recorded as an asset when acquired. The 
consumption of inventories held for resale is charged to expense as it is consumed. Inventories held for 
resale are recorded at the lower of cost or market, on the first-in, first-out cost flow assumption. 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

In the government-wide financial statements, inventory is recorded as an asset at the time of purchase, 
and charged to expense as it is consumed. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

In the governmental fund financial statements, supplies are recorded as an expenditure at the time of 
purchase. Reported inventories are equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance classification which 
indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even though they are a component 
of net current assets. 

6. Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied on or before October 1, of the preceding the start of the fiscal year. They 
attach an enforceable lien on property, and become due and payable as of the following January, the 
first day of the fiscal year. Taxes are payable in two installments on or before April 30 and October 31 of 
the fiscal year. 
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The City is permitted by several state statutes to levy varying amounts of taxes per $1 ,000 of taxable 
valuation on taxable real property in the City. 

7. Changes In General Capital Assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows: 

Balance 
1/1/2014 Increases Decreases 

$ 823,927.55 $ $ 
818,127.00 
880,312.60 973,426.07 (1,853, 738.67) 

2,522,367 .15 973,426.07 {1,853, 738.67) 

5, 182,030.14 1,853, 738.67 
12,619, 754.04 123,326.47 

1 ,966,577.11 122,332.58 

19, 768,361.29 2,099,397.72 

733,582.39 121,807.94 
3,432,527.44 330,660.44 
1,515,637.20 99,581.70 

5,681,747.03 552,050.08 

14,086,614.26 1,547,347.64 

Depreciation expenses were charged to functions as follows: 
General Government $ 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Health and Welfare 
Culture and Recreation 
Total Depreciation Expense, 

Governmental Activities 
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114,525.50 
103,003.24 
281,730.38 

387.33 
52,403.63 

Balance 
12/31/2014 

$ 823,927.55 
818,127.00 

1,642,054.55 

7,035,768.81 
12,743,080.51 
2,050,309.69 

21,829, 159.01 

855,390.33 
3,763,187.88 
1,578,912.23 

6, 197,490.44 

15,631,668.57 



Balance Balance 
1/1/2014 Increases Decreases 12/31/2014 

Business-Type Activities: 
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated 

Land $ 98,283.84 $ $ $ 98,283.84 
Construction in Progress 1,203,724.13 1,203,724.13 

Total Capital Assets, not being Depreciated 98,283.84 1,203, 724.13 1,302,007.97 

Capital Assets, being Depreciated: 
Buildings 2,216,651.22 2,216,651.22 
Machinery and Equipment 1,874,038.62 270,818.04 2, 144,856.66 
Improvements Other than Building 13,343,350.40 13,420,109.60 

Total 17,434,040.24 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 
Buildings 395,794.32 30,775.67 426,569.99 
Machinery and Equipment 943,183.93 83,643.64 1,026,827.57 
Improvements Other than Building 5,069,125.76 369,663.64 5,438,789.40 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 6,408, 104.01 484,082.95 6,892, 186.96 

Total Business-Type Activities Capital 
Assets, being depreciated, net 11,025,936.23 (136,505.71) 10,889,430.52 

Business-Type Activity, Capital Assets, net $ 11, 124,220.07 $ 1,067,218.42 $ 12, 191,438.49 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

Water $ 258,358.59 
Sewer 225,724.36 

Total Depreciation Expense, Business-Type Activities $ 484,082.95 

Construction Work in Progress at December 31, 2014 is comprised of the following: 

Project Name 

Ground Water Storage Tank 

Project 
Authorization 

Total Amount 
Expended 

Amount 
Committed 

$ 1,750,646.25 $ 1,203,724.13 $ 546,922.12 
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8. Long-Term Liabilities 

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities follows: 
Balance Balance Due within 
1/1/2014 Additions Retired 12/31/2014 Qne Year 

Primary Government: 
Governmental Activities: 
TIF Loan - River Valley $ 698,825.04 $ 691, 111.01 

Total Debt 698,825.04 691,111.01 691, 111.01 

Accrued Compensated 
Absences -
Governmental Funds 46,103.68 46,103.68 46,103.68 

Total Governmental 
Activities 741,630.56 46,103.68 737,214.69 737 214.69 

Business-Type Activities: 
DENR Loan 26,775.52 {8,466.99) 18,308.53 

Total Debt 26,775.52 (8,466.99) 18,308.53 8,917.32 

Accrued Compensated 
Absences -
Business-Type Funds 8,379.26 $ 6,871.67 {8,379.26) 6,871.67 

Total Business - Type 
Activities 35,154.78 6,871.67 {16,846.25) 25,180.20 

Total Primary Government $ 776,785.34 $ (67,365.80) $ 762,394.89 $ 753,003.68 

Debt payable at December 31, 2014 is comprised of the following: 

Governmental Activities: 

Tl F Loan - River Valley Project: 
Pay-as-you-go financing due Developer for costs incurred for the TIF Development 
District Number 2. Repayment of the PAYG Note will be over the life of the TIF District, not 
to exceed 20 years, at a rate not to exceed 8.00%. Payments from the River Valley Tax 
Increment Financing District Debt Service Fund. 

Compensated Absences: 
Compensated absences of General Government Employees. 

Business-Type Activities: 

Consolidated Water Facilities Construction Program Loan: 
This loan was obtained for the consolidated water facilities construction of the water and 
sewer lines to the Northshore Estates. The loan was funded with appropriations from the 
State of South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources (SD DENR 
loan). The loan is to be repaid over 20 years in biannual installments of $4,881.52 with the 
final payment due in November 2016. Interest at 5.25% and payments from the Water and 

$691,111.01 

46,103.68 

Sewer Funds. 1 

'"'""'""''"""""t"'.r1 Absences: 
Water Fund 

Fund 

Municipal employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused vacation time and sick leave for 
subsequent use or for payment upon termination, death, or retirement. A liability for the time and related 
benefits is recorded when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. 
The compensated absence liability attributed to the governmental activities will be paid by the General 
Fund. 
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Annual requirement to amortize long-term debt, excluding compensated absences, at December 31, 
2014 were: 

9. Operating Leases 

The City is obligated under a lease accounted for as an operating lease. The lease is for a copy 
machine. Operating leases do not give rise to property rights or lease obligation. Payments of $569.89 
are made monthly from the General Fund. 

The following are the minimum payments on the existing operating leases: 

Year Amount 

2015 $ 6,838.68 
2016 3,974.58 
2017 2, 768.33 

10. Individual Fund lnterfund Receivable and Payable Balances 

lnterfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2014 were: 

lnterfund lnterfund 
Fund Receivables Payables 

General Fund $ 283, 159.17 $ 
Liquor, Lodging, and Dining Sales Tax Fund 209,389.46 
911 Emergency Fund 73,769.71 

Total $ 159.17 $ 159.17 

The General Fund loaned money to the Liquor, Lodging, and Dining Sales Tax Fund and 911 Emergency 
Fund for funding temporary cash shortages. The City expects all interfund receivables to be repaid within 
one year. 

11. Restricted Net Position 

net position for ended December 31, 2014 was as follows: 

Cumulative Reserve - SDPAA 
Economic Development and Promotion 

Services 

to statutory requirements. 
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12. Notes Receivable 

The City participates in the Economic Development Program whereby the city received a community 
development grant, which was loaned to new enterprises located within the city. Amounts received from 
repayment of debts are set-aside in a special revenue fund and are reserved for future loans. 
Receivables related to the Economic Development Program at December 31, 2014 were as follows: 

On March 1, 2000 the municipality loaned $150, 000 to the North Sioux City Housing and Redevelopment 
Commission (NSCHRC) at 0% interest per annum. The loan was made from the General Fund and is to 
be repaid over twenty-five years with annual payments of $6,000 beginning March 2001. The amount 
receivable at December 31, 2014 was $66,000. The Commission is a component unit of the City and 
this note receivable qualifies as a related party transaction. 

Aegis Food TestingNanguard Sciences borrowed a sum of $75,000 from the City on September 4, 2012 
at an annual interest rate of 3%. Monthly payments of $1,347.65 will be made for five years starting in 
August of 2013 until fully paid off in August 2018. Balance of note receivable at December 31, 2014 was 
$56,076.72. 

The annual amounts to be received on the notes receivable are as follows: 

NSC Vanguard 
Year HRC Sciences Total 

2015 $ 6,000.00 $14,690.13 $ 20,690.13 
2016 6,000.00 15,136.95 21,136.95 
2017 6,000.00 15,597.34 21,597.34 
2018 6,000.00 10,646.30 16,646.30 
2019-2023 30,000.00 30,000.00 
2024-2028 12,000.00 12!000.00 
Total $66,000.00 $ 56,070.72 $ 122,070.72 

13. Retirement Plan 

All employees, except for part-time employees, participate in the South Dakota Retirement System 
(SDRS), a cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement system established to provide 
retirement benefits for employees of the State of South Dakota and its political subdivisions. The SDRS 
provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits. The right to receive retirement benefits vests after 
three years of credited service. Authority for establishing, administering and amending plan provisions 
are found in South Dakota Codified Law 3-12. The SDRS issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by 
writing to the SDRS, P.O. Box 1098, Pierre, SD 57501-1098 or by calling (605) 773-3731. 

General employees are required by state statute to contribute 6 percent of their salary to the plan, while 
public safety and judicial employees contribute at 8 percent and 9 percent, respectively. State statute 
also requires the employer to contribute an amount equal to the employee's contribution. State statute 
also requires the employer to make an additional contribution in the amount of 6.2 percent for any 
compensation exceeding the maximum taxable amount social security for general employees only. 
The City's share of contributions to the SDRS for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 
2012 were $52,542, $50,641, and $50,582, respectively, equal to the required contributions each year. 
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14. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the year ended December 31, 
2014, the City managed its risks as follows: 

Liability Insurance: 

The City joined the South Dakota Public Assurance Alliance, a public entity risk pool currently operating 
as a common risk management and insurance program for South Dakota local government entities: The 
objective of the SDPAA is to administer and provide risk management services and risk sharing facilities 
to the members and to defend and protect the members against liability, to advise members on loss 
control guidelines and procedures, and provide them with risk management services, loss control and 
risk reduction information and to obtain lower costs for that coverage. The Municipality's responsibility is 
to promptly report to and cooperate with the SDPAA to resolve any incident which could result in a claim 
being made by or against the City. The City pays an annual premium, to provide liability coverage 
detailed below, under a claims-made policy and the premiums are accrued based on the ultimate cost of 
the experience to date of the SDPAA member, based on their exposure or type of coverage. The City 
pays an annual premium to the pool to provide coverage for torts, thefts, errors and omissions, 
automobile and general liability. 

The agreement with the South Dakota Public Assurance Alliance provides that the above coverage will 
be provided up to a $2,000,000 limit. Member premiums are used by the pool for payment of claims and 
to pay for reinsurance for claims in excess of $250,000 for property coverage and $500,000 for liability 
coverage to the upper limit. A portion of the member premiums are also allocated to a cumulative 
reserve fund. The City would be eligible to receive a refund for a percentage of the amount allocated to 
the cumulative reserve fund on the following basis: 

End of City's First Full Year 50% 
End of City's Second Full Year 60% 
End of City's Third Full Year 70% 
End of City's Fourth Full Year 80% 
End of City's Fifth Full Year 90% 
End of City's Sixth Full Year and Thereafter 100% 

As of December 31, 2014, the City has a vested balance in the cumulative reserve fund of 
$26,627.71. 

The City carries a $100 deductible for the automobile comprehensive coverage and $250 deductible for 
the automobile collision coverage, $500 deductible for official's liability and $2,000 for Law Enforcement 
liabilities. 

The City does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit. Settled claims 
resulting from these risks have never exceeded the liability coverage. 

Worker's Compensation: 

The City joined the South Dakota Municipal League Workers Compensation Fund, a public entity risk 
pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for South Dakota local 
government entities. The objective of the Fund is to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the 
member organizations, a program of worker's compensation coverage, to obtain lower costs for that 
coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program. The City's responsibility is to initiate 
and maintain a safety program to give its employees safe and sanitary working conditions and to 
promptly report to and cooperate with the Fund to resolve any worker's compensation claims. The City 
pays an annual premium, to provide worker's compensation coverage for its employees, under a self­
funded program and the premiums are accrued based on the ultimate cost of the experience to date 
the Fund members. Coverage limits are set by state statute. The pool pays the first $650,000 of any 
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claim per individual. The pool has reinsurance which covers up to statutory limits in addition to a 
separate combined employer liability limit of $2,000,000 per incident. 

The City does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit. Settled claims 
resulting from these risks have never exceeded the liability coverage. 

Unemployment Benefits: 

The City has elected to be self-insured and retain all risk for liabilities resulting from claims for 
unemployment benefits. 

During the year ended December 31, 2014 no claims were filed for unemployment benefits. At 
December 31, 2014, no claims had been filed and were outstanding. It is not anticipated that any 
additional claims for unemployment benefits will be filed in the next fiscal year. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 

BUDGETARY BASIS COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Actual 
Amounts Variance 

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive 
Original Final Basis} {Negative} 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

General Property Taxes $ 417,867.00 $ 417,867.00 $ 421,831.70 $ 3,964.70 
General Sales and Use Taxes 1,587,745.00 1,587,745.00 1,588,519.91 774.91 
Gross Receipts Business Taxes 

Licenses and Permits 80,700.00 80,700.00 97,094.35 16,394.35 
Intergovernmental Revenue: 

State Grants 49,494.64 49,494.64 
State Shared Revenue: 

Bank Franchise Tax 1,800.00 1,800.00 2,983.94 1, 183.94 
Liquor Tax Reversion 8,500.00 8,500.00 16,614.85 8, 114.85 
Motor Vehicle Licenses (5%) 20,000.00 20,000.00 32,711.43 12,711.43 
Local Government Highway 
and Bridge Fund 35,000.00 35,000.00 76,505.44 41,505.44 

County Shared Revenue: 
County Highway and Bridge Tax 1,000.00 1,000.00 797.31 (202.69) 
County Wheel Tax 8,000.00 8,000.00 9,324.46 1,324.46 

Charge for Services: 
General Government 8,100.00 8,100.00 1,497.54 (6,602.46) 
Sanitation 3,000.00 3,000.00 1,298.00 (1,702.00) 

Fines and Forfeits: 
Court Fines and Costs 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,566.61 566.61 
Library 400.00 400.00 1,014.00 614.00 
Other 

Miscellaneous Revenue: 
Investment Earnings 15,000.00 15,000.00 13,889.20 (1,110.80) 
Rentals 102,660.00 102,660.00 108, 107.03 5,447.03 
Special Assessments 2,387.12 2,387.12 
Contribution and Donations 1,250.00 1,250.00 
Other 46,000.00 46,000.00 64,649.81 1 

Total Revenue 2,338,772.00 2,338,772.00 2,493,537.34 154,765.34 

Expenditures: 
General Government: 

Legislative 72,328.25 73,649.98 71,403.94 2,246.04 
Elections 2,700.00 3,900.00 3,375.43 524.57 
Financial Administration 237,053.35 258,213.97 246,407.16 11,806.81 
Other 1 

Total General Government 453,182.35 

Public Safety: 
Police 720,597.67 759,522.67 726,197.66 33,325.01 
Community Center 16,900.00 25,100.00 25,250.35 (150.35) 
Civil Defense 

Total Public Safety 740,652.67 

41 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 

BUDGETARY BASIS COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Actual 
Amounts Variance 

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive 
Original Final Basis) (Negative) 

Public Works: 
Highways, Streets and Dikes 652,371.46 771,699.81 581,281.46 190,418.35 
Cemeteries 5,550.00 7,050.00 5,070.23 1,979.77 

Total Public Works 657,921.46 778,749.81 586,351.69 192,398.12 

Health and Welfare: 
Health 5,151.00 5,566.00 7,366.93 (1,800.93) 
Senior Center 30,100.00 35,500.00 23,285.61 12,214.39 

Total Health and Welfare 35,251.00 41,066.00 30,652.54 10,413.46 

Culture and Recreation: 
Recreation 11,400.00 11,400.00 6,005.23 5,394.77 
Parks 156,450.00 181,450.00 86,250.71 95,199.29 
Libraries 112,238.02 130,008.02 122,091.34 7,916.68 

Total Culture and Recreation 280,088.02 322,858.02 214,347.28 108,510.74 

Conservation and Development: 
Economic Development and Assistance 5,000.00 6,600.00 7,510.50 
Economic Opportunity 37,699.00 37,699.00 32,699.00 5,000.00 

Total Conservation and Development 42,699.00 44,299.00 40,209.50 4,089.50 

Contingency 106,000.00 921.73 921.73 

Total Expenditures 2,244,098.50 2,428,904.58 2,040,267.38 388,637.20 

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures 94,673.50 (90, 132.58) 453,269.96 543,402.54 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Sale of Municipal Property 47,000.00 47,000.00 
Transfers Out {31,000.00) {31,000.00) 31,000.00 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (31,000.00) {31,000.00) 47,000.00 78,000.00 

Net Change in Fund Balances 63,673.50 (121, 132.58) 500,269.96 621,402.54 

Fund Balance - Beginning 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 

BUDGETARY BASIS COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND -ADDITIONAL SALES TAX FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Actual 
Amounts Variance 

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive 
Original Final Basis) (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

General Sales and Use Taxes $ 349,141.16 $ 349, 141.16 $ 397, 129.98 $ 47,988.82 
Miscellaneous Revenue: 

Investment Earnings 7,000.00 7,000.00 7,267.72 267.72 
Contributions and Donations 250,000.00 250,000.00 71,825.00 {178, 175.00) 

Total Revenue 606,141.16 606,141.16 476,222.70 (129,918.46) 

Ex~enditures: 

Culture and Recreation: 
Library Project 430,000.00 1, 148,000.00 1,07 4,845.92 154.08 

Total Expenditures 430,000.00 1, 148,000.00 1,074,845.92 73,154.08 

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) 

Expenditures 176,141.16 (541,858.84) (598,623.22) (56, 764.38) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 176,141.16 (541,858.84) (598,623.22) (56,764.38) 

Fund Balance - Beginning 1,680,981.05 1,680,981.05 1,680,981.05 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ {56, 764.38) 

43 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 

BUDGETARY BASIS COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LIQUOR, LODGING, AND DINING SALES TAX FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

General Sales and Use Taxes 
Miscellaneous Revenue: 

Investment Earnings 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures: 
Conservation and Development: 

Economic Development 
and Assistance 

Economic Opportunity 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) 

Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balance - Beginning 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

(Budgetary 
Basis) 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 92,700.00 $ 92,700.00 $ 121 ,851.41 $ 29, 151.41 

2,000.00 

94,700.00 

50,000.00 
127,677.00 

177,677.00 

2,000.00 

94,700.00 

116,000.00 
132,677.00 

248,677.00 

4,247.36 

126,098.77 

153,475.87 
150,610.18 

304,086.05 

(82,977.00) (153,977.00) (177,987.28) 

51,000.00 

51,000.00 

(82,977.00) (102,977.00) (177,987.28) 

394,453.26 394,453.26 394,453.26 

$ 311,476.26 $ 291,476.26 
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2,247.36 

31,398.77 

(37,475.87) 
(17,933.18) 

(55,409.05) 

(24,010.28) 

(51,000.00) 

(51,000.00) 

(75,010.28) 

$ (75,010.28) 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 

BUDGETARY BASIS COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
SPEC~LREVENUEFUND-911EMERGENCYFUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Actual 
Amounts Variance 

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive 
Original Final Basis) (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

911 Telephone Surcharge $ 35,000.00 $ 35,000.00 $ 84,555.17 $ 49,555.17 

Total Revenue 35,000.00 35,000.00 84,555.17 49,555.17 

Ex~enditures: 

Public Safety: 
Police 50,000.00 78,500.00 06.61 ~606.61) 

Total Expenditures 50,000.00 78,500.00 (606.61) 

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) 

Expenditures (15,000.00) (43,500.00) 5,448.56 48,948.56 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfer In 15,000.00 19,000.00 {19,000.00) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 15,000.00 19,000.00 (19,000.00) 

Net Change in Fund Balances (24,500.00) 5,448.56 29,948.56 

Fund Balance - Beginning (72,958.12) (72,958.12) (72,958.12) 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ {72,958.12) $ ~97,458.12) $ ~67,509.56) $ 29,948.56 
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MUNICIPALITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Schedules of Budgetary Comparisons for the General Fund 

and for each major Special Revenue Fund with a legally required budget 

Note 1 - Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: 

The Municipality follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

1. At the first regular board meeting in September of each year or within ten days thereafter, the 
Governing Board/Municipality Commission introduces the annual appropriation ordinance for the 
ensuing fiscal year. 

2. After adoption by the Governing Board/Municipality Commission, the operating budget is legally 
binding and actual expenditures for each purpose cannot exceed the amounts budgeted, except 
as indicated in number 4. 

3. A line item for contingencies may be included in the annual budget. Such a line item may not 
exceed 5 percent of the total municipal budget and may be transferred by the resolution of the 
Governing Board/Municipality Commission to any other budget category that is deemed 
insufficient during the year. 

4. If it is determined during the year that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted, state statute 
allows the adoption of supplemental budgets. 

5. Unexpected appropriations lapse at year end unless encumbered by the resolution of the 
Governing Board/Municipality Commission. 

Encumbrances accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for 
the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable 
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund 
and each major special revenue fund. 

6. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 
General Fund and each major special revenue fund. 

7. Budgets for the General Fund and each major special revenue fund are adapted on a basis 
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (USGAAP). 

Note 2 - GAAP/Budgetary Accounting Basis Differences: 

The financial statements prepared in conformity with USGAAP present capital outlay expenditure 
information in a separate category of expenditures. Under budgetary basis of accounting, capital 
outlay expenditures are reported within the function to which they For example, the a 
new fire would be reported as a outlay expenditure on the Governmental Funds Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures and in Fund Balances, however in the Budgetary RSI Schedule, 
the purchase a fire would reported as an expenditure of the Public Department 
function of government, along with all current Fire Department related expenditures. 

46 



CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Special Revenue Debt Service 

River Valley 
Grant Tax Increment 

Revolving Financing 
Fund District 

ASSETS: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ 3,949.50 
Notes Receivable 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES: 
Liabilities: 

Due to Other Funds 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Restricted: 

Economic Development and Promotion 56,076.72 
Grant Revolving Loan 55,814.54 
Debt Service 3,949.50 

Total Fund Balances 111,891.26 3,949.50 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 111,891.26 
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Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

$ 59,764.04 
56,076.72 

56,076.72 
55,814.54 
3,949.50 

115,840.76 

$ 115,840.76 



CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Special Revenue Debt Service 

River Valley Total 
Grant Tax Increment Nonmajor 

Revolving Financing Governmental 
Fund District Funds 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

General Property Taxes $ $ 11,642.79 $ 11,642.79 
Miscellaneous Revenue: 

Investment Earnings 1,927.85 1,927.85 
Contributions and Donations 

Total Revenue 1,927.85 11,642.79 13,570.64 

Expenditures: 
Debt Service 7,714.03 7,714.03 

Total Expenditures 7,714.03 7,714.03 

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) 

Expenditures 1,927.85 3,928.76 5,856.61 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfer Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 1,927.85 3,928.76 5,856.61 

Fund Balance - Beginning 109,963.41 20.74 109,984.15 

Fund Balance - Ending $ 111,891.26 
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QUAM & BERGLIN, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANTS 

110 WEST MAIN P.O. BOX 426 
ELK POINT, SOUTH DAKOTA 57025 

(605) 356-3374 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

City Council 
City of North Sioux City 
Union County, South Dakota 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of North Sioux City, South Dakota, as of December 31, 2014 and for 
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the City of North Sioux City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 3, 2015. A disclaimer of opinion was issued on the aggregate discretely presented 
component units because the financial data of these components units was not audited. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of North 
Sioux City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City of North Sioux City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of North Sioux City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Prior and Current Audit Findings, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control 
that we consider to be a material weakness. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Prior and Current Audit Findings as item 2014-001 to be a material 
weakness. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of North Sioux City's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of with 

of laws, regulations, and contract agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
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direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing 
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which 
are described in the accompanying Schedule of Prior and Current Audit Findings as items 2014-
002 and 2014-003. 

North Sioux City's Response to Findings 

The City of North Sioux City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Prior and Current Audit Findings. The City of North Sioux City's 
responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. As required by 
South Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11 , this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is 
not limited. 

{i)tl4Mv q ~~ P, C r 

Quam and Berglin, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 
Elk Point, SD 

December 3, 2015 
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CITY OF NORTH SIOUX CITY 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AND CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 

STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The prior audit recommendation 2013-01 has not been corrected and is restated as Current Audit 
Finding Number 2014-001. 

CURRENT AUDIT FINDING: 

Internal Control Related Finding - Material Weakness: 

Audit Finding Number 2014-001: 

The City of North Sioux City does not have an adequate segregation of duties for revenues, 
resulting in decreased reliability of reported financial data and increased potential for the loss of 
public assets. 

Criteria: 
In order to achieve proper internal control, it is necessary to have segregation of duties provided 
between performance, review and record keeping of the tasks related to revenues. Lack of this 
segregation of duties could adversely affect the organization's ability to record, process, 
summarize, and report financial data consistent with management assertions. 

Condition Found: 
A material weakness in internal controls was reported due to a lack of adequate segregation of 
duties for revenues resulting in decreased reliability of reported financial data and increased 
potential for the loss of public assets. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City officials be cognizant of this lack of segregation of duties and attempt 
to provide compensating controls whenever and wherever possible and practical. 

Compliance Related Findings: 

Audit Finding Number 2014-002: 

Expenditures were paid in excess of appropriations for various departments. 

Criteria: 
SDCL 9-21-9 requires that the governing body shall not add to the expenditures any sum in excess 
of the amount provided for in the annual appropriation ordinance except as otherwise specially 
provided. 

expenditures paid for Economic Development and Assistance and for Economic Opportunity in 
the Liquor, Lodging, and Dining Special Revenue Fund exceeded the amounts budgeted in that 
department by $37,475.87 and $17,933.18, respectively. 

We recommend that when such a situation occurs in the future, a supplemental budget be adopted 
to utilize unobligated fund balances. 
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Audit Finding Number 2014-003: 

The 2015 Annual Appropriation Ordinance was not published after its adoption in September of 
2014. 

Criteria: 
SDCL 9-19-7 requires that the budget be published after adoption by the governing 
Board. 

Condition Found: 
The 2015 Annual Appropriation Ordinance was adopted in September 2014, but was not published 
at any time after its adoption .. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend that in the future, the Annual Appropriations Ordinance be published following 
adoption by the Governing Board. 

Corrective Action Plan: 
Susan Kloostra, Finance Officer for the City of North Sioux City, is the contact person responsible 
for the corrective action plan for these comments. The City Council has prepared responses to the 
findings, which are on page 53. 
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Cil!J of 

NORTH 
SIOUX CITY, SD 

504 River Drive 
North Sioux City, SD 57049 
Phone(605)232-4276 
Fax(605) 232-0506 

CORRECTIVE PLAN OF ACTION 
December 31, 2014 

The City of North Sioux City has considered the lack of segregation of duties for revenues. At this 
time it is not cost efficient for the City of North Sioux City to hire the additional staff needed to 
achieve segregation of duties. Alternate procedures have been implemented by the City of North 
Sioux City to decrease the likelihood that financial data is adversely affected. The City will continue 
to monitor the necessity to have segregation of duties for revenues and implement such segregation 
as budget dollars and board authority allows. 

Also, per SDCL 9-21-9, expenditures in one department exceeded the appropriations budgeted. The 
City will monitor the expenditures and when a situation occurs in the future, a supplemental budget 
will be adopted to utilize unobligated fund balances. 

Publication of the 2015 adopted appropriation ordinance was inadvertently omitted. The City will 
monitor publications in the future to make sure that all required publications are done. 

Finance Officer 
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